Cabazon Water District | 1
April 6, 2020 Special Board Meeting Agenda

Cabazon Water District
14618 Broadway Street « P.O. Box 297
Cabazon, California 92230

SPECIAL BOARD MEETING
AGENDA

Meeting Location:
Teleconference Call

Dial-in #: 978-990-5321
Access Code: 117188

Meeting Date:
Monday, April 6, 2020 ~ 6:00 PM

CALL TO ORDER

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

REMEMBRANCE OF QUR SERVICE MEN AND WOMEN
ROLL CALL

CONSENT CALENDAR

All matters in this category are considered to e consistent with the Board/District goals, District Policies and
Regulations adopted and/or approved by the Board of Directors, and will be enacted in one motion. There will be no
separate discussion of these items. If discussion is required, items may be removed from the consent calendar and
will be considered separately.

1. Approval of:
2. Warrants — None
3. Awards of Contracts ~ None
NEW BUSINESS
1. Discussion/Action: COVID-19 Event Discussion and Approval

The Board to discuss the following:

a. Adoption of an Emergency Declaration
b. Approval of COVID-19 event plans:

Business (351) 840-4442 « FAX (951) 849-2519




Cabazon Water District
April 6, 2020 Special Board Meeting Agenda

» Closure of lobby and transaction window to the public with the intent of
complying with current State and County orders of "Safer at Home.”

»  Other proposed COVID-19 event plans to be reviewed and approved by the
Board.

¢. Adoption of FEMA-approved contracting policies
OLD BUSINESS

PUBLIC COMMENTS

Any person may address the Board of Directors at this time on any matter within the subject matter jurisdiction of the
Cabazon Water District that is not listed on the agenda; however, any matter that requires action will be referred to
staff for investigation and reported at a subsequent Board of Directors meefing. The Board of Directors is prohibited
by law from discussing or taking immediate action on items during this public comment period. To comment on
specific agenda items, please advise the Board secretary prior to the meeting. Each public comment will be limited to
three (3) minutes. Individuals may not give their time away to another spokesperson. After two (2) minutes, the
speaker will be notified that hefshe has one (1) minute remaining. AB 1234 ORAL REPORTS (Gov. Code Sec.
53232.3(d))

GENERAL MANAGER/BOARD COMMENTS

1. Future Agenda ltems

The Board Chair or the majority of the Board may direct staff to investigate and report back to an
individual(s) and the Board on matters suggested or direct the General Manager/Board Secretary to
place the matter on a future Board meeting.

» Suggested agenda items from the Public,
» Suggested agenda items from Management.
* Suggested agenda items from Board Members.

2. Management Comments
Staff members may speak on items of information not requiring comment or discussion to the Board
and public. Topics which may be included on a future meeting agenda may be presented but cannot
be discussed. {3 minutes)

3. Board Member Comments

Board members may speak on items of information not requiring comment or discussion to the
Board and public. (3 minutes)

MISCELLANEQUS

1. Future Board ltems/Next Board Meeting Date(s)
a. Finance & Audit Workshop — Tuesday, April 21, 2020, 5:00 pm

b. Regular Board Meeting — Tuesday, April 21, 2020, 6:00 pm {Teleconference only)
c. Personnel Committee — None

Business {951) 849-4442 + FAX (951) 849-2519

2




Cabazon Water District
April 6, 2020 Special Board Meeting Agenda

d. San Gorgonio Pass Regional Water Alliance — (Canceled)

ADJOURNMENT

ADA Compliance Issugs

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act & Government Code Section 54954.2, if special assistance Is needed fo participate in a
Board mesling, please contact the Clerk of the Board at {951) 849-4442. Notification of at feast 48 hiours prior to mesting iime will assist staff
in asstiring that reasonable arrangements can be made to provide access.

Business (951) 849-4442 + FAX (951) 849-2519




RESOLUTION NO. 03-2020

A RESOLUTION OF THE CABAZON WATER DISTRICT ADOPTING THE
FEDERAL EMERGENCY AND FEDERAL GRANT PROCUREMENT PROCEDURES

WHEREAS, the Office of Management and Budget (OMB) requires the non-Federal
entity to use procurement standards that conform to the procurement standards in the Uniform
Guidance, codified at 2 CFR Sections 200.317-200.326.

WHEREAS, the Cabazon Water District (“District”) has prepared the Cabazon Water
District Federal Grant Procurement Procedures (“Procedures™), attached hereto as Exhibit “A.”

WHEREAS, the District desires to adopt the Procedures for use by the District for
procurements made (i) in preparation of, during, and after an emergency declared by the
President of the United States, and that may be subject to federal funding or reimbursement; (ii)
when using federal grant funds subject to the Uniform Guidance.

The District does hereby find, order and resolve as follows:

SECTION 1. The recitals set forth above are true and correct and are incorporated into
this resolution by this reference.

SECTION 2. The District hereby adopts the Cabazon Water District Federal
Emergency and Federal Grant Procurement Procedures, attached hereto as Exhibit “A.”

SECTION 3. This resolution shall be effective as of the date of adoption. The Clerk
of the Board shall certify the adoption of this resolution.

s

ADOPTED this day of April, 2020.

Ayes:
Nays:
Absent:
Abstain:

[Signatures on following page]

22527.00030\32834880.1




SIGNATURE PAGE
TO
RESOLUTION NO. 03-2020

Robert Lynk
Board Chair
ATTEST:
Elizabeth Lemus
Clerk of the Board
APPROVED AS TO FORM:
Best Best & Krieger LLP

General Counsel

22527.00030\32834880.1




Exhibit “A”

FEDERAL EMERGENCY AND FEDERAL GRANT PROCUREMENT
PROCEDURES

[attached behind this page]

Exhibit A
22527.00030132834880.F




CABAZON WATER
DISTRICT

FEDERAL EMERGENCY
AND FEDERAL GRANT
PROCUREMENT PROCEDURES

April _,2020

22527.00030A32834866.1




CABAZON WATER DISTRICT
FEDERAL EMERGENCY AND FEDERAL GRANT
PROCUREMENT PROCEDURES

1. Purpose

The purpose of these Cabazon Water District (“District”) Federal Emergency and Federal
Grant Procurement Procedures is to define the practices and policies governing the procurement
of public works projects, contractual services, professional services or materials, supplies and
equipment (i) in preparation of, during, and after an emergency that may be subject to federal
funding or reimbursement; (ii) when using federal grant funds subject to the regulations set forth
in the following sentence. These Federal Emergency Procurement Procedures are compliant with
Title 2 of the Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost
Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards.

2. Federally Declared Emergencies and Federal Grants; Procurement and Contracting
Requirements

In the event of an emergency declared by the President of the United States, the District
must comply with Federal procurement standards as a condition of receiving public assistance
funding from the Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) for contract costs for
eligible work. FEMA funding is governed by Title 2 of the Code of Federal Regulations (CTR)
Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for
Federal Awards (“Uniform Guidance™).

In addition, most federal grant funding is also subject to the Uniform Guidance. Federal
grant compliance requires the grantee to conduct procurements in accordance with written
procurement policies and procedures that comply with the requirements set forth in the Uniform
Guidance. These procurement procedures shall be complied with in connection with utilization
of federal grant funding by the District, in addition to any other specific grant requirements.

These procedures are in addition to and are not intended to replace or supersede any other
District procurement policies. In the case of a conflict between these procedures, or the District’s
procurement policies, the more stringent requirement shall govern, provided that the more
stringent requirement would not violate a federal procurement requirement. In such case, for
federally funded contracts, the federal requirement shall govern.

(a) Conflicts of Interest

(1) Standards of Conduct for Conflicts of Interest. No employee, officer or
agent of the District shall participate in selection, or in the award or administration of a contract
supported by federal funds if a conflict of interest, real or apparent, would be involved. Such a
conflict would arise when: The employee, officer or agent; any member of his immediate family,
his or her partner; or an organization which employs, or is about to employ, any of the above, has
a financial or other interest in the firm selected for award, The District’s officers, employees or
agents will neither solicit nor accept gratuities, favors or anything of monetary value from

22527.00030\32834866.1




contractors, potential contractors, or parties to subagreements. Such a conflict will not arise
where the financial interest is not substantial or the gift is an unsolicited item of nominal intrinsic
value. Employees must follow applicable laws, rules, and regulations in regard to conflicts of
interest including, but not limited to, the Political Reform Act, the prohibition against contractual
conflicts of interest, and guidelines in the California Code of Regulations regarding acceptance
of gifts.

(ii)  Violations. Disciplinary actions to be applied for violations of the above
standards are as follows,

(D The violation of these Standards of Conduet by District employees
will subject the violator to any disciplinary proceedings or action deemed appropriate by the
CEO/Port Director. Employees may correct a violation in any manner provided for under the
Political Reform Act, and its implementing regulations.

(2) The violation of any of these Standards of Conduct by District
officers will require correction of the violation in any manner provided for under the Political
Reform Act, and its implementing regulations.

(3) Contractors or subcontractors that violate these Standards of
Conduct as relates to an active federally-funded procurement may be prohibited from bidding on
the procurement, or may be subject to other action as deemed appropriate by the CEO/Port
Director.

(4)  Agents of the District that violate these Standards of Conduct as
relates to federally-funded procurements may be prohibited from participation on behalf of the
District on federally funded projects, or subject to other action as deemed appropriate by the
CEQ/Port Director.

(b)  Procurement Standards

(i) QOvergight.  The District shall maintain administrative oversight of
contractors to ensure that contractors perform in accordance with the terms, conditions and
specifications of their contracts or purchase orders.

(ii)  Economical Approach.  The District must avoid acquisition of
unnecessary or duplicative items, Consideration should be given to consolidating or breaking out
procurements to obtain a more economical purchase. Where appropriate, an analysis will be
made of lease versus purchase alternatives, and any other appropriate analysis to determine the
most economical approach. The District will enter into state and local intergovernmental
agreements or inter-entity agreements where appropriate for procurement or use of common or
shared goods and services. If feasible and it reduces project costs, the District will explore using
federal excess and surplus property in lieu of purchasing new equipment and property. When
appropriate, the District will investigate using value engineering clauses in contracts for
consiruction projects of sufficient size to offer reasonable opportunities for cost reductions.

(iti)  Detailed Records. The District shall maintain records sufficient to detail
the history of each procurement, These records will include, but are not necessarily limited to the

2
22527.0003032834866.1




following: rationale for the method of procurement, selection of contract type, contractor
selection or rejection, and the basis for the contract price.

(iv)  Procurement Issues. The District alone shall be responsible, in accordance
with good administrative practice and sound business judgment, for the seftlement of all
contractual and administrative issues arising out of procurements. These issues include, but are
not limited to, source evaluation, protests, disputes and claims., Protest procedures or
information on obtaining the procedures shall be included in the procurement documents.

(c) Competition

(i) Full and Open Competition. In order to ensure objective contractor
performance and eliminate unfair competitive advantage, contractors that develop or draft
specifications, requirements, statements of work, or invitations for bids or requests for proposals
must be excluded from competing for such procurements. Some of the situations considered to
be restrictive of competition include but are not limited to:

(1)  Placing unreasonable requirements on firms in order for them to
qualify to do business,

(2) Requiring unnecessary experience and excessive bonding;

(3)  Noncompetitive pricing practices between firms or between
affiliated companies;

(4)  Noncompetitive contracts to consultants that are on retainer
contracts;

(5)  Organizational conflicts of interest, as further detailed herein;

(6)  Specifying only a “brand name” product instead of allowing “an
equal” product to be offered and describing the performance or othet relevant requirements of
the procurement; and

(7 Any arbitrary action in the procurement process.

(i)  Organizational Conflicts of Interest. An unfair competitive advantage
could result if a contractor were allowed to submit a bid or proposal for work described in a
specification or statement of work that the contractor itself developed. For the purpose of
eliminating a potential unfair competitive advantage, and in compliance with applicable state and
federal laws and regulations, a contractor that develops or assists in developing specifications,
requirements, statements of work, invitation for bids, and/or request for proposals for a District
procurement is excluded from competing for the resultant procurement, unless an appropriate
waiver is issued by the District. All waivers will be assessed by the District on a case-by-case
basis.

(iii)  Geographical Preference. The District shall conduct procurements in a
manner that prohibits the use of statutorily or administratively imposed in-state or local

22527.00030\32834866.1




geographical preferences in the evaluation of bids or proposals, except in those cases where
applicable federal statutes expressly mandate or encourage geographic preference. When
contracting for architectural and engineering (A/E) services, geographic location may be a
selection criteria provided its application leaves an appropriate number of qualified firms, given
the nature and size of the project, to compete for the contract.

(iv)  Procurement Transactions. The District shall require the following
information for procurement transactions:

(1) A clear and accurate description of the technical requirements for
the material, product or service to be procured. Such description shall not, in competitive
procurements, contain features which unduly restrict competition. The description may include a
statement of the qualitative nature of the material, product or service to be procured, and when
necessary, shall set forth those minimum essential characteristics and standards to which it must
conform if it is to satisfy its intended use. Detailed product specifications should be avoided if at
all possible. When it is impractical or uneconomical to make a clear and accurate description of
the technical requirements, a brand name or equal description may be used as a means to define
the petrformance or other salient requirements of procurement. The specific features of the
named brand which must be met by offerors shall be clearly stated; and

(2)  All requirements which the offerors must fulfill and all other
factors to be used in evaluating bids or proposals.

(v}  Prequalification Lists. The District shall ensure that all prequalified lists,
if used, of persons, firms or products which are used in acquiring goods and services are current
and include enough qualified sources to ensure maximum open and free competition. The
District shall not preclude potential bidders from qualifying during the solicitation period.

(d) Procurement Procedures

The thresholds below are federal thresholds. If the federal government adopts higher
thresholds during a declared emergency, the higher thresholds shall apply. If District thresholds
are lower, the more restrictive requirement shall govern, notwithstanding the provisions herein,
unless otherwise approved by the Board.

(1) Micro-Purchases. Purchases within the micro-purchase threshold (e.g.,
currently set at purchases of $10,000 or less but periodically adjusted for inflation) may be
awarded without soliciting competitive quotations if the District considers the price to be
reasonable. To the extent practicable, the District must distribute micro-purchases equitably
among qualified suppliers.

(i)  Small Purchases. Purchases within the simplified acquisition threshold
(e.g., currently set at purchases of $250,000 or less) shall not be required to be formally bid.
Price quotations must be received from no less than three (3) sources.

22527.00030132834866.




(iii)  Formal, Scaled Bidding.

(1)  Bids are publicly solicited and a firm-fixed-price contract (fump
sum or unit price) is awarded to the responsible bidder whose bid, conforming to all the material
terms and conditions of the invitation for bids, is the lowest in price. Formal, sealed bidding is
required for purchases greater than the simplified acquisition threshold, which is currently set at
$250,000, or as may be adjusted by the Federal Acquisition Regulation, pursuant to 48 CFR §
2.101.

(2)  This is the preferred method for procuring construction, if a
complete, adequate, and realistic specification or purchase description is available; two or more
responsible bidders are willing and able to compete effectively and for the business; and the
procurement lends itself to a firm-fixed-price contract and the selection of the successful bidder
can be made principally on the basis of price.

(3) The District must publicly advertise the Invitation for Bids and
publicly open all bids at the time and place prescribed in the invitation.

(4)  Any contracts awarded pursuant to this procedure shall be to the
lowest responsible bidder submitting a responsive bid and shall be for a firm fixed price. Any or
all bids may be rejected if there is a sound documented reason.

(iv)  Competitive Proposals.

(1) When the nature of a procurement does not lend itself to formal,
sealed bidding, the District may solicit competitive proposals, The technique of competitive
proposals is normally conducted with more than one source submitting an offer, and either a
fixed-price or cost-reimbursement type contract is awarded.

(2) A request for proposals (RFP) must be publicly advertised, and the
District must solicit proposals from an adequate number of sources. The RFP must identify all
evaluation factors and their relative importance; however, the numerical or percentage ratings or
weights need not be disclosed.

(3)  Evaluation factors that will be considered in evaluating proposals
shall be tailored to each procurement and shall include only those factors that will have an
impact on the selection decision.

a. The District’s procurement officer shall establish a formal
evaluation committee, of at least two persons. The size of an evaluation committee should be
based on the size and complexity of the goods or services being procured and well balanced and
represented by individuals involved with the procurement and/or affected by the goods or
services being procured.

b. The evaluation committee will be charged with
responsibility for evaluating proposals in accordance with the evaluation criteria in the
solicitation, short listing firms, establishing a competitive range, and/or recommending a firm or
firms for contract award.

22527.00030032834866.1




(4)  Any contract awarded based on the competitive proposal
procurement process cannot be based exclusively on price or price-related factors.

(5)  If a contract is awarded, it shall be to the responsible firm whose
proposal is most advantageous to the District (“best value™), with price and other factors
considered.

(v) Competitive Proposals for A&E Services, The competitive proposal
procedures above may be used for procurement of architect and engineering (A&E) services,
provided that proposers must be evaluated based on competence and qualifications, without
regard to price. For A&E procurements, price will not be used as a selection factor. The District
will rank proposers based on qualifications only, and attempt to negotiate fair and reasonable
compensation with the highest ranked proposer. If negotiations with the highest ranked proposer
are unsuccessful, such negotiations will be terminated and the District will commence
negotiations with the next highest ranked proposer. This process shall be continued with
successive qualified proposers until agreement is reached that is determined to be fair and
reasonable.

(vi} Noncompetitive Procurements.

(1)  Contracts may be procured through a noncompetitive proposal
only when:

a. The item is only available from a single soutce;

b. The public exigency or emergency for the requirement will
not permit a delay resulting from competitive solicitation,

C. The Federal awarding agency or pass-through entity
expressly authorizes noncompetitive proposals in response to a written request from the District;
or

d. Competition is deemed inadequate after the solicitation of a
number of sources.

(vii)  Public Projects. Public projects shall be procured by the District’s formal
contract bid procedures, if any, and the formal, sealed bidding in this section. If there is conflict
between the foregoing, the more restrictive requirements shall apply.

(vii) Award.

(1) Responsible Contractor. The District shall award contracts only to
responsible contractors possessing the ability to perform successfully under the terms and
conditions of a proposed procurement. Consideration will be given to such matters as contractor
integrity, compliance with public policy, record of past performance, and financial and technical
1esources.

22527.00030032834866.1




(2)  Debarment and Suspension. In accordance with 2 CFR 200.213, in
connection with the responsibility determination, a check of debarment and suspension using the
System for Award Management (SAM), www.sam.gov, must be performed and documented in
the procurement records prior to award.

(e) Contracting with Small and Minority Firms, Women’s Business Enterprises,
and Labor Area Surplus Firms

(L) The District must take all necessary affirmative steps to ensure the use of
minority businesses, women’s business enterprises, and labor surplus area firms when possible,
as set forth at 2 CFR § 200.321 and detailed below, The District shall:

(1)  Place qualified small and minority businesses and women's
business enterprises on solicitation lists;

(2)  Assure that small and minority businesses, and women's business
enterprises are solicited whenever they are potential sources;

3 Divide total requirements, when economically feasible, into
smaller tasks or quantities to permit maximum participation by small and minority businesses,
and women's business enterprises;

(4)  Establish delivery schedules, where the requirement permits,
which encourage participation by small and minority businesses, and women's business
enterprises;

(5 Use the services and assistance, as appropriate, of such
organizations as the Small Business Administration and the Minority Business Development
Agency of the Department of Commerce; and

(6)  Require the prime contractor, if subcontracts are to be let, to take
the affirmative steps listed in paragraphs (1) through (5) of this section.

(i)  The District shall document the steps above, and any relevant findings
applicable to any of the steps above in its procurement file.

3] Cost and Price

(1) Cost or Price Analysis. The District shall perform a cost or price analysis
in connection with every procurement action, including contract modifications, in excess of the
simplified acquisition threshold. While the method and degree of analysis depend on the facts
surrounding the particular procurement situation, the District must, at a minimum, make
independent estimates before receiving bids or proposals.

(i)  Profit. The District shall negotiate profit as a separate element of the price
for each contract in which there is no price competition and in all cases where a cost analysis is

performed as required by 2 CFR § 200.323(b).

22527.00030\32834866.1




(iii)  Estimated Costs. Costs or prices based on estimated costs for contracts
are allowable only to the extent that costs incurred or cost estimates included in negotiated prices
would be allowable for the District under 2 CFR 200.400 et seq.

(g) Payment Procedures

(1) Method of Contracting.  Contracts entered into pursuant to these
procedures shall utilize only fixed-price, cost-reimbursement, or, to a limited extent, time and
materials payment methods.

(i)  Prohibited Methods of Contracting. The District shall not use the cost
plus a percentage of cost or percentage of construction cost methods of contracting for any work
for which federal reimbursement will be sought.

(i1i)  Time and Materials (“T&M”) Contracts

(1 T&M contracts should be used rarely, and the use of T&M
contracts should be limited to a reasonable time period (e.g., no more than 70 hours) based on
circumstances during which the District cannot define a clear scope of work.

(2)  The District shall only enter into a time and materials contract if all
of the following apply:

a The District has determined and documented in the project
file that no other contract is suitable;

b. The contract has a guarantced maximum price that the
confractor exceeds at its own risk; and

C. The District provides a high degree of oversight to obtain
reasonable assurance that the contractor is using efficient methods and effective cost controls.

(3)  The District must define the scope of work as soon as possible to
enable procurement of a more acceptable type of contract (i.e., non-T&M).

(tv)  Separate Invoicing

(1)  All purchases made during a proclaimed emergency shall require
separate invoicing from routine (i.e., non-emergency related) purchases, All invoices shall state
the goods, services, or equipment provided and shall specify where the goods or services were
delivered. All invoices shall specify the location(s) where the goods or services were used, if
possible. Any invoice which fails to properly identify the emergency nature of the purchase and
provide details as to the date(s) and location(s), as appropriate, shall not be paid until such errors
are corrected by the vendor and re-submitted in correct form.

(V) Auditing of Invoices for Debris Removal. All invoices for debris
clearance and removal shall be audited prior to payment to the contractor, Contractors shall be
notified of this requirement prior to the award of any contract for debris clearance and/or

22527.00030\328348606.1




removal. Audits shall be in accordance with procedures for debris removal monitoring specified
in FEMA’s Publication 325, Debris Management Guide.

(h) Bonding Requirements

(1) Bonding.  For construction or facility improvement contracts or
subcontracts exceeding the simplified acquisition threshold (See 2 CFR 200.88), the District
shall require at a minimum:

(I) A bid guarantee from each bidder equivalent to five percent of the
bid price.

(2) A performance bond on the part of the contractor for 100 percent
of the contract price.

(3) A payment bond on the part of the contractor for 100 percent of the
contract price.

(1) Procurement of Recovered Materials

(i) For procurements covered under these procedures, the District and its
contractors must comply with section 6002 of the Solid Waste Disposal Act, as amended by the
Resource Conservation and Recovery Act. In accordance with these requirements, the District
shall only procure items designated in the guidelines of the Environmental Protection Agency
(EPA) at 40 CFR part 247 that contain the highest percentage of recovered materials practicable,
consistent with maintaining a satisfactory level of competition; procuring solid waste
management services in a manner that maximizes energy and resource recovery; and establishing
an affirmative procurement program for procurement of recovered materials identified in the
EPA guidelines.

(ii) This requirement applies to purchases of items when the purchase price of
the item exceeds $10,000, or the value of the quantity acquired during the preceding fiscal year
exceeded $10,000.

() Contract Provisions

(L Contract Provisions. The District’s contracts shall contain the applicable
provisions described in Appendix 1 to Part 200 — Contract Provisions for Non-Federal Entity
Contracts Under Federal Awards.

(k) Pre-Event Contracts

(1) The District may choose to solicit bids and proposals and award contracts
in non-disaster times. This may include, but is not limited to, debris removal contracts and
debris monitoring contracts.

22527.00030\32834866.1




CABAZON WATER
DISTRICT

FEDERAL EMERGENCY
AND FEDERAL GRANT
PROCUREMENT PROCEDURES

April __, 2020

22527.00030\32834866.1




CABAZON WATER DISTRICT
FEDERAL EMERGENCY AND FEDERAL GRANT
PROCUREMENT PROCEDURES

1. Purpose

The purpose of these Cabazon Water District (“District™) Federal Emergency and Federal
Grant Procurement Procedures is to define the practices and policies governing the procurement
of public works projects, contractual services, professional services or materials, supplies and
equipment (i) in preparation of, during, and after an emergency that may be subject to federal
funding or reimbursement; (ii) when using federal grant funds subject to the regulations set forth
in the following sentence. These Federal Emergency Procurement Procedures are compliant with
Title 2 of the Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost
Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards.

2. Federally Declared Emergencies and Federal Grants; Procurement and Coniracting
Requirements

In the event of an emergency declared by the President of the United States, the District
must comply with Federal procurement standards as a condition of receiving public assistance
funding from the Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) for contract costs for
eligible work, FEMA funding is governed by Title 2 of the Code of Federal Regulations (CI'R)
Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for
Federal Awards (“Uniform Guidance™).

In addition, most federal grant funding is also subject to the Uniform Guidance. Federal
grant compliance requires the grantee to conduct procurements in accordance with written
procurement policies and procedures that comply with the requirements set forth in the Uniform
(Guidance. These procurement procedures shall be complied with in connection with utilization
of federal grant funding by the District, in addition to any other specific grant requirements.

These procedures are in addition to and are not intended to replace or supersede any other
District procurement policies. In the case of a conflict between these procedures, or the District’s
procurement policies, the more stringent requirement shall govern, provided that the more
stringent requirement would not violate a federal procurement requirement. In such case, for
federally funded contracts, the federal requirement shall govern.

(a) Conflicts of Interest

1) Standards of Conduct for Conflicts of Interest. No employee, officer or
agent of the District shall participate in selection, or in the award or administration of a contract
supported by federal funds if a conflict of interest, real or apparent, would be involved. Such a
conflict would arise when: The employee, officer or agent; any member of his immediate family;
his or her partner; or an organization which employs, or is about to employ, any of the above, has
a financial or other interest in the firm selected for award. The District’s officers, employees or
agents will neither solicit nor accept gratuities, favors or anything of monetary value from

22527.00030032834866.1




contractors, potential contractors, or parties to subagreements. Such a conflict will not arise
where the financial interest is not substantial or the gift is an unsolicited item of nominal intrinsic
value. Employees must follow applicable laws, rules, and regulations in regard to conflicts of
interest including, but not limited to, the Political Reform Act, the prohibition against contractual
conflicts of interest, and guidelines in the California Code of Regulations regarding acceptance
of gifts.

(11  Violations. Disciplinary actions to be applied for violations of the above
standards are as follows.

(D The violation of these Standards of Conduct by District employees
will subject the violator to any disciplinary proceedings or action deemed appropriate by the
General Manager, Employees may correct a violation in any manner provided for under the
Political Reform Act, and its implementing regulations.

(2) The violation of any of these Standards of Conduct by District
officers will require correction of the violation in any manner provided for under the Political
Reform Act, and its implementing regulations.

3 Contractors or subcontractors that violate these Standards of
Conduct as relates to an active federally-funded procurement may be prohibited from bidding on
the procurement, or may be subject to other action as deemed appropriate by the General
Manager.

(4) Agents of the District that violate these Standards of Conduct as
relates to federally-funded procurements may be prohibited from participation on behalf of the
District on federally funded projects, or subject to other action as deemed appropriate by the
General Manager.

(b) Procurement Standards

(1) Oversight.  The District shall maintain administrative oversight of
contractors to ensure that contractors perform in accordance with the terms, conditions and
specifications of their contracts or purchase orders.

(ii)  Economical Approach. The District must avoid acquisition of
unnecessary or duplicative items. Consideration should be given to consolidating or breaking out
procurements to obtain a more economical purchase. Where appropriate, an analysis will be
made of lease versus purchase alternatives, and any other appropriate analysis to determine the
most cconomical approach. The District will enter into state and local intergovernmental
agreements or inter-entity agreements where appropriate for procurement or use of common or
shared goods and services. If feasible and it reduces project costs, the District will explore using
federal excess and surplus property in lieu of purchasing new equipment and property. When
appropriate, the District will investigate using value engineering clauses in contracts for
construction projects of sufficient size to offer reasonable opportunities for cost reductions.

(i)  Detailed Records. The District shall maintain records sufficient to detail
the history of each procurement. These records will include, but are not necessarily limited to the

2
22527.00030132834866.1




following: rationale for the method of procurement, selection of confract type, contractor
selection or rejection, and the basis for the contract price.

(iv)  Procurement Issues. The District alone shall be responsible, in accordance
with good administrative practice and sound business judgment, for the settlement of all
contractual and administrative issues arising out of procurements. These issues include, but are
not limited to, source evaluation, protests, disputes and claims., Protest procedures or
information on obtaining the procedures shall be included in the procurement documents.

(¢} Competition

(i) Full and Open Competition. In order to ensure objective contractor
performance and eliminate unfair competitive advantage, contractors that develop or draft
specifications, requirements, statements of work, or invitations for bids or requests for proposals
must be excluded from competing for such procurements. Some of the situations considered to
be restrictive of competition include but are not limited to:

(D Placing unreasonable requirements on firms in order for them to
qualify to do business;

2) Requiring unnecessary experience and excessive bonding;

(3) Noncompetitive pricing practices between firms or between
affiliated companies;

(4) Noncompetitive contracts to consultants that are on retainer
contracts;

(5) Organizational conflicts of interest, as further detailed herein,

(6) Specifying only a “brand name” product instead of allowing “an
equal” product to be offered and describing the performance or other relevant requirements of
the procurement; and

(7 Any arbitrary action in the procurement process.

(ii) Organizational Conflicts of Interest. An unfair competitive advantage
could result if a contractor were allowed to submit a bid or proposal for work described in a
specification or statement of work that the contractor itself developed. For the purpose of
eliminating a potential unfair competitive advantage, and in compliance with applicable state and
federal laws and regulations, a contractor that develops or assists in developing specifications,
requirements, statements of wotk, invitation for bids, and/or request for proposals for a District
procurement is excluded from competing for the resultant procurement, unless an appropriate
waiver is issued by the District. All waivers will be assessed by the District on a case-by-case
basis.

(i)  Geographical Preference. The District shall conduct procurements in a
manner that prohibits the use of statutorily or administratively imposed in-state or local

22527.00030132834866.1




geographical preferences in the evaluation of bids or proposals, except in those cases where
applicable federal statutes expressly mandate or encourage geographic preference. When
contracting for architectural and engineering (A/E) services, geographic location may be a
selection criteria provided its application leaves an appropriate number of qualified firms, given
the nature and size of the project, to compete for the contract,

(tv)  Procurement Transactions. The District shall require the following
information for procurement transactions;

(1 A clear and accurate description of the technical requirements for
the material, product or service to be procured. Such description shall not, in competitive
procurements, contain features which unduly restrict competition. The description may include a
statement of the qualitative nature of the material, product or service to be procured, and when
necessary, shall set forth those minimum essential characteristics and standards to which it must
conform if it is to satisfy its intended use. Detailed product specifications should be avoided if at
all possible. When it 1s impractical or uneconomical to make a clear and accurate description of
the technical requirements, a brand name or equal description may be used as a means to define
the performance or other salient requirements of procurement. The specific features of the
named brand which must be met by offerors shall be clearly stated; and

(2) All requirements which the offerors must fulfill and all other
factors to be used in evaluating bids or proposals.

(v) Prequalification Lists. The District shall ensure that all prequalified lists,
if used, of persons, firms or products which are used in acquiring goods and services are current
and include enough qualified sources to ensure maximum open and free competition. The
District shall not preclude potential bidders from qualifying during the solicitation period.

(d) Procurement Procedures

The thresholds below are federal thresholds. If the federal government adopts higher
thresholds during a declared emergency, the higher thresholds shall apply. If District thresholds
are lower, the more restrictive requirement shall govern, notwithstanding the provisions herein,
unless otherwise approved by the Board.

(1) Micro-Purchases. Purchases within the micro-purchase threshold (e.g.,
currently set at purchases of $10,000 or less but periodically adjusted for inflation) may be
awarded without soliciting competitive quotations if the District considers the price to be
reasonable. To the extent practicable, the District must distribute micro-purchases equitably
among qualified suppliers.

(ii)  Small Purchases. Purchases within the simplified acquisition threshold
(e.g., currently set at purchases of $250,000 or less) shall not be required to be formally bid.
Price quotations must be received from no less than three (3) sources,

22527.00030\32.834866.1




(iii)  Formal, Sealed Bidding.

(1 Bids are publicly solicited and a firm-fixed-price contract (lump
sum or unit price) is awarded to the responsible bidder whose bid, conforming to all the material
terms and conditions of the invitation for bids, is the lowest in price. Formal, sealed bidding is
required for purchases greater than the simplified acquisition threshold, which is currently set at
$250,000, or as may be adjusted by the Federal Acquisition Regulation, pursuant to 48 CFR §
2.101,

(2)  This is the preferred method for procuring construction, if a
complete, adequate, and realistic specification or purchase description is available; two or more
responsible bidders are willing and able to compete effectively and for the business; and the
procurement lends itself to a firm-fixed-price contract and the selection of the successful bidder
can be made principally on the basis of price.

(3)  The District must publicly advertise the Invitation for Bids and
publicly open all bids at the time and place prescribed in the invitation,

(4)  Any contracts awarded pursuant to this procedure shall be to the
lowest responsible bidder submitting a responsive bid and shall be for a firm fixed price. Any or
all bids may be rejected if there is a sound documented reason.

(iv)  Competitive Proposals,

(1)  When the nature of a procurement does not lend itself to formal,
sealed bidding, the District may solicit competitive proposals. The technique of competitive
proposals is normally conducted with more than one source submitting an offer, and either a
fixed-price or cost-reimbursement type contract is awarded.

(2) A request for proposals (RFP) must be publicly advertised, and the
District must solicit proposals from an adequate number of sources, The RFP must identify all
evaluation factors and their relative importance; however, the numerical or percentage ratings or
weights need not be disclosed.

(3)  Evaluation factors that will be considered in evaluating proposals
shall be tailored to each procurement and shall include only those factors that will have an
impact on the selection decision.

a. The District’s procurement officer shall establish a formal
evaluation committee, of at least two persons. The size of an evaluation committee should be
based on the size and complexity of the goods or services being procured and well balanced and
represented by individuals involved with the procurement and/or affected by the goods or
services being procured.

b. The evaluation committee will be charged with
responsibility for evaluating proposals in accordance with the evaluation criteria in the
solicitation, short listing firms, establishing a competitive range, and/or recommending a firm or
firms for contract award.

22527.00030\32834866.1




(4 Any contract awarded based on the competitive proposal
procurement process cannot be based exclusively on price or price-related factors.

(5)  If a confract is awarded, it shall be to the responsible firm whose
proposal is most advantageous to the District (“best value”), with price and other factors
considered.

(v) Competitive Proposals for A&E Services. The competitive proposal
procedures above may be used for procurement of architect and engineering (A&E) services,
provided that proposers must be evaluated based on competence and qualifications, without
regard to price. For A&E procurements, price will not be used as a selection factor. The District
will rank proposers based on qualifications only, and aftempt to negotiate fair and reasonable
compensation with the highest ranked proposer. If negotiations with the highest ranked proposer
are unsuccessful, such negotiations will be terminated and the District will commence
negotiations with the next highest ranked proposer. This process shall be continued with
successive qualified proposers until agreement is reached that is determined to be fair and
reasonable,

(vi)  Noncompetitive Procurements.

(1) Contracts may be procured through a noncompetitive proposal
only when:

a. The item is only available from a single source;

b. The public exigency or emergency for the requirement will
not permit a delay resulting from competitive solicitation;

c. The Federal awarding agency or pass-through entity
expressly authorizes noncompetitive proposals in response to a written request from the District,
or

d. Competition is deemed inadequate after the solicitation of a
number of sources.

(vil)  Public Projects. Public projects shall be procured by the District’s formal
contract bid procedures, if any, and the formal, sealed bidding in this section. If there is conflict
between the foregoing, the more restrictive requirements shall apply.

(viil)) Award.

(1)  Responsible Contractor. The District shall award contracts only to
responsible contractors possessing the ability to perform successfully under the terms and
conditions of a proposed procurement. Consideration will be given o such matters as contractor
integrity, compliance with public policy, record of past performance, and financial and technical
resources.

22527.00030\328348066.1




(2)  Debarment and Suspension. In accordance with 2 CFR 200.213, in
connection with the responsibility determination, a check of debarment and suspension using the
System for Award Management (SAM), www.sam,gov, must be performed and documented in
the procurement records prior to award,

(e) Contracting with Small and Minority Firms, Women’s Business Enterprises,
and Labor Area Surplus Firms

(1) The District must take all necessary affirmative steps to ensure the use of
minority businesses, women’s business enterprises, and labor surplus area firms when possible,
as set forth at 2 CFR § 200.321 and detailed below. The District shall:

(1) Place qualified small and minority businesses and women's
business enterprises on solicitation lists;

(2)  Assure that small and minority businesses, and women's business
enterprises are solicited whenever they are potential sources;

(3) Divide total requirements, when economically feasible, into
smaller tasks or quantities to permit maximum participation by small and minority businesses,
and women's business enterprises;

(4)  Establish delivery schedules, where the requirement permits,
which encourage participation by small and minority businesses, and women's business
enterprises;

(5) Use the services and assistance, as appropriate, of such
organizations as the Small Business Administration and the Minority Business Development
Agency of the Department of Commerce; and

(6) Require the prime contractor, if subcontracts are to be let, to take
the affirmative steps listed in paragraphs (1) through (5) of this section.

(i)  The District shall document the steps above, and any relevant findings
applicable to any of the steps above in its procurement file,

(H Cost and Price

(i) Cost or Price Analysis. The District shall perform a cost or price analysis
in connection with every procurement action, including contract modifications, in excess of the
simplified acquisition threshold. While the method and degree of analysis depend on the facts
surrounding the particular procurement situation, the District must, at a minimum, make
independent estimates before receiving bids or proposals.

(i)  Profit. The District shall negotiate profit as a separate element of the price
for each contract in which there is no price competition and in all cases where a cost analysis is
performed as required by 2 CFR § 200.323(b).

22527.00030\32834866.1




(iii)  Estimated Costs. Costs or prices based on estimated costs for contracts
are allowable only to the extent that costs incurred or cost estimates included in negotiated prices
would be allowable for the District under 2 CFR 200.400 et seq.

(2) Payment Procedures

(1} Method of Contracting. Contracts entered into pursuant to these
procedures shall utilize only fixed-price, cost-reimbursement, or, to a limited extent, time and
materials payment methods.

(i)  Prohibited Methods of Contracting. The District shall not use the cost
plus a percentage of cost or percentage of construction cost methods of contracting for any work
for which federal reimbursement will be sought.

(i)  Time and Materials (“T&M”) Contracts

(D T&M contracts should be used rarely, and the use of T&M
contracts should be limited to a reasonable time period (e.g., no more than 70 hours) based on
circumstances during which the District cannot define a clear scope of work.

(2) The District shall only enter into a time and materials contract if all
of the following apply:

a. The District has determined and documented in the project
file that no other contract is suitable;

b. The contract has a guaranteed maximum price that the
contractor exceeds at its own risk; and

c. The District provides a high degree of oversight to obtain
reasonable assurance that the contractor is using efficient methods and effective cost controls,

3) The District must define the scope of work as soon as possible to
enable procurement of a more acceptable type of contract (i.e., non-T&M).

(iv)  Separate [nvoicing

(1 All purchases made during a proclaimed emergency shall require
separate invoicing from routine (i.c., non-emergency related) purchases. All invoices shall state
the goods, services, or equipment provided and shall specify where the goods or services were
delivered. All invoices shall specify the location(s) where the goods or services were used, if
possible. Any invoice which fails to properly identify the emergency nature of the purchase and
provide details as to the date(s) and location(s), as appropriate, shall not be paid until such errors
are corrected by the vendor and re-submitted in correct form.

(v) Auditing of Invoices for Debris Removal. All invoices for debris
clearance and removal shall be audited prior to payment to the contractor. Contractors shall be
notified of this requirement prior to the award of any contract for debris clearance and/or

22527.00030032834866.1




removal. Audits shall be in accordance with procedures for debris removal monitoring specified
in FEMA’s Publication 325, Debris Management Guide.

(h) Bonding Requirements

(1) Bonding.  For construction or facility improvement contracts or
subcontracts exceeding the simplified acquisition threshold (See 2 CFR 200.88), the District
shall require at a minimum:

(1) A bid guarantee from each bidder equivalent to five percent of the
bid price. '

(2) A performance bond on the part of the contractor for 100 percent
of the contract price.

(3) A payment bond on the part of the contractor for 100 percent of the
contract price.

(i) Procurement of Recovered Materials

(i) For procurements covered under these procedures, the District and its
contractors must comply with section 6002 of the Solid Waste Disposal Act, as amended by the
Resource Conservation and Recovery Act. In accordance with these requirements, the District
shall only procure items designated in the guidelines of the Environmental Protection Agency
(EPA) at 40 CFR part 247 that contain the highest percentage of recovered materials practicable,
consistent with maintaining a satisfactory level of competition; procuring solid waste
management services in a manner that maximizes energy and resource recovery; and establishing
an affirmative procurement program for procurement of recovered materials identified in the
EPA guidelines.

(i)  This requirement applies to purchases of items when the purchase price of
the item exceeds $10,000, or the value of the quantity acquired during the preceding fiscal year
exceeded $10,000.

() Contract Provisions

(1) Contract Provisions. The District’s contracts shall contain the applicable
provisions described in Appendix II to Part 200 — Contract Provisions for Non-Federal Entity
Contracts Under Federal Awards.

(k}  Pre-Event Contracts

(1) The District may choose to solicit bids and proposals and award contracts
in non-disaster times. This may include, but is not limited to, debris removal contracts and
debris monitoring contracts.

22527.00030:32834866.1




RESOLUTION NO. 04-2020

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE
CABAZON WATER DISTRICT
PROCLAIMING A LOCAL EMERGENCY

WHEREAS, the governing body of the District has the authority to proclaim a local
emergency; and

WHEREAS, California Government Code Section 3100 states that all public employees
are declared to be disaster service workers subject to such disaster service activities as may be
assigned to them by their superiors or by law, and the District needs to provide potable water
services deemed as an essential public service; and

WHEREAS, any actions that the District may take to ensure the continuation of critical
services to protect the safety of customers and to provide for immunities that will protect the
District for actions taken, as covered under the California Emergency Services Act; and

WHEREAS, working with the County of Riverside, this proclamation authorizes the
undertaking of powers and invoking and disseminating emergency orders (e.g., emergency
orders, emergency spending authorities, emergency or pre-established contracting, order
necessary Personal Protective Equipment, recovery, etc.) and regulations necessary to provide
for the protection of life, property, and the environment; and

WHEREAS, this proclamation establishes that an emergency exists, and that if mutual
aid of in-county rescurces are needed to assist the District, as covered under the California
Master Mutual Aid Agreement and any local agreements to provide mutual aid should be
sufficient to establish, and that the Emergency Services Act applies; and

WHEREAS, this proclamation establishes that an emergency exists, and if out-of-county
assistance is needed, requests for mutual aid should follow procedures set forth by the
Standardized Emergency Management System (SEMS) and the Governor's Office of
Emergency Services (CalOES), including obtaining mission numbers through the County of
Riverside Emergency Management Department from CalOES for responding agencies. This is
particularly important for possible reimbursement of extraordinary expenses in the event of a
proclaimed “State of Emergency” or in the event of a presidential declaration of disaster when
state or federal disaster relief funds become available; and

WHEREAS, conditions of disaster or of extreme peril to the health and safety of persons
and property have arisen both internationally and within the United States as a resuit of the
introduction of the novel coronavirus (COVID-19), a novel communicable disease which led to
California Governor Gavin Newson, to proclaim a State of Emergency for California on March
4, 2020; and

WHEREAS, currently COVID-19 has spread globally to more than 70 countries, infecting
more than 180,000 persons and causing more than 7,100 fatalities worldwide. Due to the
expanding list of countries with widespread transmission of COVID-19, and increasing travel
alerts and warnings for countries experiencing sustained or uncontrofled community
transmission issued by the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC), COVID-19 has
created conditions that are likely to be beyond the control of local resources and require the
combined forces of other political subdivisions to combat this virus; and




WHEREAS, a Local Health Emergency was proclaimed by the County of Riverside
Public Health Officer on March 8, 2020, and ratified by the Board of Supervisors on March 10,
2020; and

WHEREAS, a Local Emergency was proclaimed by the County of Riverside Board of
Supervisors on March 10, 2020; and

WHEREAS, the CDC confirmed person-to-person transmittion of COVID-19 in the
United States, raising the possibility of community transmission occurring in the general public.
This has resulted in a Federal Declaration of National Emergency as declared by President
Donald Trump on March 13, 2020; and

WHEREAS, the District’s ability to mobilize local resources, coordinate interagency
response, accelerate procurement of vital supplies, use mutual aid, and seek future
reimbursement by State and Federal governments will be critical to successfully responding to
COVID-19; and

WHEREAS, these conditions warrant and necessitate that the District proclaim the
existence of a local emergency; now, therefore,

BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Directors of the District hereby proclaims the
existence of a local emergency and directs District staff to take the necessary steps for the
protection of life, health and safety.

IT IS FURTHER RESOLVED that during the existence of said local emergency, the
powers, functions, and duties of the District shall be those prescribed by state law and by
ordinances and resolutions of the District Board.

IT IS FURTHER RESOLVED that all departments of the District shall review and revise
their department emergency and contingency plans to address the risks COVID-19 poses to
their critical functions in coordination with the Districts Emergency Management
Department/Manager.

IT IS FURTHER RESOLVED that all District departments shall track costs for staffing,
supplies, and equipment related to COVID-19 preparation and prevention and forward that
information to the District’s finance department; and complete an Initial Damage Estimate (IDE)
Category B, and forward that information to the Riverside County Emergency Management
Department (EMD) on a daily basis.

IT IS FURTHER RESOLVED that the District's internal departments shall coordinate
District-wide planning, preparedness and response efforts regarding COVID-18 with the
Riverside County EMD.

IT IS FURTHER RESOLVED that this Resolution shall take effect immediately and that
widespread publicity and notice shall be given said Proclamation through the most feasible and
adequate means of disseminating such notice throughout the District.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED AND ORDERED that a copy of this Resolution be
forwarded to the Riverside County EMD to be forwarded to the Director of the California
Gaovernor's Office of Emergency Services,




ADOPTED this day of April 2020.
Ayes:

Nays:
Abstain:

ATTEST:

Elizabeth Lemus
Board Secretary

Robert Lynk, Board Chair




